## SAN LEANDRO UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT SAN LEANDRO, CALIFORNIA

www.sanleandro.k12.ca.us

#### REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION - MINUTES

December 7, 2010

The Board of Education of the San Leandro Unified School District met in regular session on December 7, 2010, in the San Leandro City Council Chambers, 835 East 14th Street, San Leandro, California.

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by President Katz-Lacabe.

## **BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT**

Trustee Ron Carey

Trustee Lance James

Trustee Morgan Mack-Rose

Trustee Diana Prola

Trustee Carmen Sullivan

Trustee Hermy Almonte, Clerk

Trustee Mike Katz-Lacabe, President

Jeff Engler, Student Board Member

## DISTRICT STAFF PRESENT

Cindy Cathey, Superintendent Song Chin-Bendib, Assistant Superintendent Debbie Wong, Interim Assistant Superintendent John Thompson, Ed. D., Senior Director II Linda Pollard, Administrative Assistant

#### PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING CLOSED SESSION AGENDA

There were no public comments concerning items on the closed session agenda.

#### **CLOSED SESSION**

At 6:01 p.m., the Board went into closed session for Student Expulsions, Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Hiring, Conference with Labor Negotiator, Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation – Significant exposure to litigation – 1 case, Public Employee Appointment – Title: Director, Business Services and Conference with Real Property Negotiator pursuant to Education Code Sections 35146 and 48918 (c), and Government Code Sections 54957, 54957.6, 54956.9, 54956.8, and 54956.9. The closed session was adjourned at 6:24 p.m.

A reception was held immediately following closed session welcoming newly appointed Board member Ron Carey, elected Board member Lance James and reelected Board member Mike Katz-Lacabe.

The Board returned to open session at 7:05 p.m. with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. President Katz-Lacabe said the Board had been in closed session where no reportable action was taken.

## SWEARING IN OF NEWLY APPOINTED, ELECTED, RE-ELECTED BOARD MEMBERS

As is the custom, each Board member-elect selected the individual to administer the oath. Ron Carey was sworn in by San Leandro High School Principal Linda Granger; Lance James was sworn in by Board President Mike Katz-Lacabe, and Mike Katz-Lacabe was sworn in by Alameda Superior Court Judge Dennis Hayashi.

Trustee Carey thanked his family for their support and encouragement to fulfill this position, adding that he will do his best.

Trustee James stated that he was honored to be here and thanked the voters of San Leandro, his family, friends, and colleagues for their support, trust, and confidence. He commented that the next four years certainly will be challenging for all of us; however was positive that the Board, administration, teachers, staff and students will continue working together for the betterment of the San Leandro Unified School District.

Trustee Katz-Lacabe thanked Judge Hayashi for swearing him in and acknowledged former Board trustees Lisa Hague and Pauline Cutter, Mayor-elect Stephen Cassidy and City Councilmember Michael Gregory who were in attendance. Trustee Katz-Lacabe expressed his excitement on embarking upon another four years on the San Leandro Board and looked forward to working with the new City Council stating that "together we are going to do great things in the next few years."

## APPROVAL OF AGENDA

On a motion made by Trustee Prola and seconded by Trustee James, the Board approved the agenda for the regular meeting of December 7, 2010, by a 7-0 vote.

## PUBLIC TESTIMONY ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

- Lorena Montoya, Washington Elementary School 1st Grade teacher, addressed the Board on making well-informed decisions regarding cuts for next year. She invited the Board to visit her classroom and see how their decisions can affect the students.
- Mark Hamilton, San Leandro High School counselor, addressed the Board about the vital services that counselors provide our students. Distributing a copy of a snapshot of his caseload for the first quarter of this year and how counseling affects student achievement, he urged the Board to keep counselors.

#### **PRESENTATIONS**

\* San Leandro High School Fred T. Korematsu Campus "I Am Here and Ready for College" Parent Education Program Update

Debbie Wong, Interim Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services and Jaliza Eagles, GEAR UP Coordinator, along with Consultant Teneh Weller provided a presentation sharing the parent education workshop series, "I Am Here and Ready for College", at the San Leandro Fred T. Korematsu (FTK) Campus. Included in the update was a synopsis of the curriculum, class participation, and parent feedback on the workshop thus far. Highlights included:

- Parent Leadership Program is broken down into seven workshops:
  - 1. <u>Ages and Stages the 2<sup>nd</sup> Decade</u> Parents will understand the different stages of development and what they can do to support their child through the different stages.
  - 2. <u>The Engaged Parent</u> Parents will learn about the support that will be offered to them and their child throughout the year and will discuss the importance of setting high expectations for academic and social performance.
  - 3. <u>Say "No" to Stress</u> Parents will identify their stressors and develop strategies for alleviating stress and will understand the importance of open communication with their child in order to support them through stressful situations.
  - 4. <u>Communication</u> Parents will learn to use effective communication tools with their child, teachers, and others and understand how to communicate in a way that encourages cooperation.
  - 5. <u>Encouraging Cooperation</u> Parents will identify their parenting style and understand how that affects their child's development and will understand how to use family contracts as a method

for encouraging positive discipline.

- 6. The Partnership Model Parents will understand how to develop positive relationships with their child's teachers and work together to ensure academic excellence, and will learn the importance of partnering. Parents will also receive a short ABI training which allows them access to look at their child's grades and progress in the areas of behavior, attendance and academic performance.
- 7. <u>Graduation</u> Parents and students will come together for the last session and discuss how to consistently monitor academic progress in school, to ensure that students are achieving the A-G requirements. The second half of the evening parents and students will share what they have learned and celebrate their 7-week journey. Each parent will share their vision statements with their family and friends.
- The Parent Leadership fall session was comprised of a very diverse group with 22 English and 20 Spanish-speaking parents representing 50% of the students who fit into the target group of GPA between 1.5-2.5; 15%, 15% with GPA less than 1.5, and 5% students with GPA above 2.5.
- The winter session will begin February 3, 2011, with 30 parents already making a commitment to attend.

The Board heard testimony from two parents, Elizabeth Becerra and Porche Lombard, who participated in the program and will be graduating on December 16, 2010. They described how this program has benefited them by helping them to better support their child academically, and to better partner with the school.

Staff added that it is the hope that once the grant funding comes to an end, the program will have become a highly integral part of the school so that the curriculum and Parent Liaison will help deliver and sustain the program.

The Board thanked staff for the informative presentation and the parents for sharing their experience.

Additional questions and suggestions raised by the Board included future funding, posting the information on the website, considering Student Services as a resource for recruitment for parents of suspended or truant students, and including a study skills session for students and parents.

## \* Energy Education

Energy Education, a company that is based in Dallas, Texas, has saved organizations across the country more than \$2 billion for education. The

savings came from implementing a people-oriented "Transformational Energy Management" process and thus spending less on utility bills. The company provided a presentation to the Facility & Technology Committee on October 8, 2010. The presentation was for informational purposes only, allowing trustees to ask questions. Energy Education has submitted a proposal to the District, which is currently being reviewed by staff and legal counsel. A recommendation for approval of the proposal, if appropriate, will be presented to the Board at a later date.

Key points of the presentation provided by representatives from Energy Education included:

- No new equipment is needed
- No capital outlay required
- No comfort is sacrificed
- Program funded directly out of your existing utility budget
- The vast majority (well over 90%) of their clients save 20%-30%
- The District keeps the score on the energy-saving costs
- District investment is guaranteed (if they don't save the District at least the cost of their fee, Energy Education will write us a check for the difference each year)
- A net savings of approximately \$3.8M is estimated over 10 years
- After the four-year contract period ends, Energy Education will continue to provide their experience, training and expertise, as long as the District maintains the program
- The program changes habits, thus the savings are sustainable over decades

The Board asked clarifying questions which were addressed by the presenters. In addition, Trustee Mack-Rose asked if some of the initial Fast Track consultant fees might be covered by the recently-passed Measure M bond. Assistant Superintendent Chin-Bendib indicated that she would research this.

## **REPORTS**

1) Correspondence – Clerk Almonte reported receipt of the following emails from November 19, 2010, to December 6, 2010: From Alameda County Superintendent Sheila Jordan regarding "Freedom Bus Project and Art is Education 2011 Launch"; from Deborah and Kevin Cox regarding "Support the SLHS Libraries While Getting Some Holiday Shopping Done," and "Eat Out for Education"; from Andrew Ehrenfeld regarding "CSBA Reception"; from Wafaa Aborashed regarding "Recent plastic bag ban are you ready San Leandro?"; from Senator Ellen Corbett regarding "Important Consumer News"; from Parents Media regarding "Last chance to enter classroom contest, \$12,500 in prizes"; from Katy McCarthy regarding

"Alane Paul Castro achieves National Board Certification"; from Myrna Hernandez regarding "Washington Elementary Newsletter"; from San Leandro Education Foundation regarding "Eat Out for Education"; from Robin Michel regarding "Please join us December 7th at a reception for Appointed, New and Re-elected Trustees"; from Cynthia Vincent regarding "ACT to eliminate paper tickets"; from Kelly Ball regarding "Parents can sue if schools skimp on P.E."; from Belen Magers regarding "P.I.Q.E. Graduation at John Muir Middle School: You are Invited," and "Memorial for Emily Teo"; from Stephen Cassidy regarding "State education budget and further expected cutbacks – latest dismal news"; from Mike McMahon regarding "California aware press release on the Brown Act"; from Janita Lopez regarding "Woodrow Wilson's Annual Pancake breakfast on December 11; and from California School Boards Association regarding "CSBA call for nomination."

- 2) Student Board Member Report Student Board member Jeff Engler updated the Board on activities at the San Leandro High School main campus and the Fred T. Korematsu Campus.
  - The Winter Ball was last Friday and was very successful
  - Upcoming concerts include:
    - December 6 McKinley Winter Choir Concert
    - December 8 San Leandro High School Band and Jazz
      - **Band Winter Concert**
    - December 9 San Leandro High School Orchestra/Choir
      - Winter Concert
  - "Every 15 Minutes" Program will be returning to San Leandro High School in April 2011. The program is designed to dramatically instill teenagers with the potentially dangerous consequences of drinking while driving. The first planning meeting is scheduled for December 14 at 3:00 p.m.
- 3) Union Representative Reports There were no reports.
- 4) Superintendent Report Superintendent Cathey welcomed new Board members Trustees Carey and James and congratulated Trustee Katz-Lacabe on his re-election.

The Superintendent attended the California School Boards' Association (CSBA) conference and found it to be very informative. She attended a workshop related to parent empowerment and engagement, and plans on using that information when she convenes the Parent Advisory Committee on January 6, 2011.

Staff held their first meeting with our bilingual teachers and consultant. They looked at the bilingual programs offered at our three schools, and

discussed changes and agreements to be made to establish more consistency and possibly revamping of the Bilingual Master Plan.

On Thursday, December 9, 3:30 p.m. at John Muir Middle School library. there will be an memorial service/tree planting ceremony for Emily Teo, an 8th grader who recently passed away. Emily was part of the Make-A-Wish program, adding that her cookie recipe won the Otis Spunkmeyer cookie recipe contest.

The Superintendent also announced that she will be attending the Mayor-Elect's Transition Team meeting on behalf of the District on Thursday, December 9.

## 5) Board Committee Reports

- Curriculum Trustee Mack-Rose reported that the committee met on December 1 and discussed a variety of topics including Grades 4-12 Intensive Intervention Adoption recommendation, and Kindergarten program update, which are being brought forward for consideration tonight. In addition the committee received a Tiered Intervention Update, and discussed research writing across the grades, the homework Board workshop planning (scheduled for the January 18 Board work session), advanced placement physics course of study request and future meeting dates. It was suggested by Trustee Mack-Rose that because of the number of items that were on their agenda, the Curriculum/Policy Committee needs to meet monthly and that protocol recommendations regarding topics referred to committees by the Board needs to be developed.
- Facilities/Technology Trustee Prola reported that the committee met twice:
  - On November 30 the committee discussed the Notice of Completion (NOC) for the San Leandro High School Fred T. Korematsu Campus, Final Change Order for the Wilson elementary school heating and roofing project, Change Order #5 for the San Leandro High School Arts Education Center, and Change Order #1 for the San Leandro High School Career Technical Education Project, which are being brought forward for consideration tonight. Also, restoring the name for the student center at San Leandro High School and planning of Measure M, including the review of a program management company, were discussed.
  - On December 6 the committee discussed amending the original contract for the painting and lighting project at Garfield and

Monroe Elementary Schools, Notice of Completion for the Wilson Elementary School Heating and Roofing project, Change Order for the restroom project at Garfield and Monroe Elementary Schools, and continued the discussion and update on the professional contracted related to Measure M.

## 5) Board Representatives' Reports

- Alameda County School Boards Association Trustee Sullivan reported that the Association met on November 18. Joe Montero, Fiscal Crisis and Management Assistance Team (FGMAT) CEO, provided a presentation on how to avoid fiscal crisis. She asked that the Board save January 20 on their calendars, announcing that plans are in the works to have a dinner and invite Governor-elect Jerry Brown or Tom Torlakson, State Superintendent of Public Education-Elect, to come and speak.
- Eden Area Regional Occupational Program Trustee Almonte reported that the Governing Board met on December 7 and approved the Annual Independent Auditors Report for the year ending June 30, 2010; and the First Interim Budget Report for 2010-2011.

#### CONSENT ITEMS

Trustee Prola requested that Consent Item 5.4-C Change Order #1 to the D.L. Falk Construction, Inc. Construction Contract for the San Leandro High School Career Technical Education (CTE) Project be pulled from the consent calendar.

On a motion made by Trustee Sullivan and seconded by Trustee Almonte, the Board approved the remaining consent items by a 7-0-vote.

## General Services

1.1-C Dannis Woliver Kelley Legal Service Contract

## **Human Resources**

- 2.1-C <u>Acceptance of Personnel Report</u>
- 2.2-C Renewal of Student Teaching Agreements
- 2.3-C Personnel Clerk Job Description and Position
- 2.4-C Verification of Catastrophic Illness and the Transfer of Leave Credits

## **Educational Services**

3.1-C	Acceptance of Donations
3.2-C	Non-Public School/Agency Contract
3.3-C	Agreement between San Leandro Unified School District and Salzman Associates (I Understand-Tools for Schools) at San Leandro High School Fred T. Korematsu Campus for 2010-2011 School Year
3.4-C	Proposed Stipulated Expulsion Order for Students E06-10/11, E08-1011, and E10-01/11
Business Operations	
4.1-C	Resolution #10-67 to Declare Certain Equipment Surplus and/or Obsolete
4.2-C	Contract for Financial Advisory Services with Kelling, Northcross & Nobriga (KNN) Public Finance
Facilities and Construction	
5.1-C	Notice of Completion (NOC) for the San Leandro High School Fred T. Korematsu Campus
5.2-C	Final Change Order #3 to the West Coast Contractors, Inc. Construction Contract for the Wilson Elementary School Heating & Roofing Project
5.3-C	Change Order #5 to the Zolman Construction & Development, Inc. Construction Contract for the San Leandro High School Arts Education Center (AEC)

## ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR:

## Facilities and Construction

5.4-C Change Order #1to the D. L. Falk Construction, Inc. Construction

Contract for the San Leandro High School Career Technical

Education (CTE) Project

In response to Trustee Prola's concern that some of the changes

such as video tape and cleaning of sewer system, and abandon inplace underground sewer lines discovered should have been part of the original contract, Director of Measure B Mike Murphy provided clarification on some of the reasons these conditions were not anticipated or discovered initially.

On a motion made by Trustee Prola and seconded by Trustee Sullivan, the Board approvedChange Order #1 to the D. L. Falk Construction, Inc. construction contract for the San Leandro High School Career Technical Education (CTE) Project, by a 7-0 vote.

## **ACTION ITEMS**

## **Human Resources**

2.1-A Ratification of Tentative Agreement between San Leandro Unified
School District and the San Leandro Teachers' Association (SLTA)
and Certification of the District's Ability to Meet the Costs of
Collective Bargaining Agreement

Responding to Student Board member Engler's question regarding how restoring one furlough day for the 2010-2011 school year would impact students, Trustee Katz-Lacabe clarified that the school year will be increased by the restoration of one furlough day as an instructional day to the work year over the initial agreement between the District and SLTA.

On a motion made by Trustee Mack-Rose and seconded by Trustee James, the Board approved the ratification of Tentative Agreement between San Leandro Unified School District and the San Leandro Teachers' Association (SLTA) and Certification of the District's Ability to Meet the Costs of Collective Bargaining Agreement, which will allow for the restoration of one furlough day for the 2010-2011 school year, by a 7-0 vote.

2.2-A Ratification of Tentative Agreement between the San Leandro Unified School District and the California School Employees' Association (CSEA) and Certification of the District's Ability to Meet the Costs of Collective Bargaining Agreement

On a motion made by Trustee Prola and seconded by Trustee Almonte, the Board approved the ratification of Ratification of Tentative Agreement between the San Leandro Unified School District and the California School Employees' Association (CSEA) and Certification of the District's Ability to Meet the Costs of Collective Bargaining Agreement, which will allow for the restoration of one furlough day for the 2010-11 school year, by a 7-0 vote.

# 2.3-A <u>Agreement between the San Leandro Unified School District and the San Leandro Management Association (SLMA)</u>

On a motion made by Trustee Carey and seconded by Trustee James, the Board approved the agreement between the San Leandro Unified School District and the San leandro Management Association, which will allow for the restoration of one furlough day for the 2010-11 school year, by a 7-0 vote.

## **CONFERENCE ITEMS**

## **Educational Services**

## 3.1-CF <u>Grades 4-12 Intensive Intervention Instructional Materials Adoption</u>

The Board discussed and considered adopting grades 4-12 Intensive Intervention Instructional Materials.

Interim Assistant Superintendent Debbie Wong explained that as part of the District's Program Improvement Plan, staff implemented "Tiered Intervention," or the "Pyramid of Intervention," a system designed to improve learning outcomes for all students and address the needs of students who are more than 2 years below grade level in reading. Through a committee process, it was decided to adopt three different textbooks for each grade span: Grades 4/5; middle schools, and the high schools, as part of completing the tiered intervention pyramid. The Board Curriculum Committee met and is recommending the adoption of the following three intensive intervention instructional materials:

- **Elementary**: Hampton Brown's *Inside* for 4<sup>th</sup>-5<sup>th</sup> Intensive Intervention. Level A for 4<sup>th</sup>-5<sup>th</sup> and Level B for 5<sup>th</sup>
- *Middle School:* Cambium Learning's *Language*! For 6<sup>th</sup>-8<sup>th</sup> Intensive Intervention (Entry Level A is 0-2.5 and Level C is 3-5 Grade level)
- *High School:* Hampton Brown's *Edge* is recommended for 9-12 levels A-B 9<sup>th</sup>-10<sup>th</sup>, A-B-C 11<sup>th</sup>-12<sup>th</sup>

Trustee James thanked staff and Trustee Mack-Rose for mentioning the committee work and the importance of stakeholders being brought into the conversation.

On a motion made by Trustee Prola and seconded by Trustee Carey,

the Board adopted grades 4-12 Intensive Intervention Instructional materials, by a 7-0 vote.

# 3.2-CF <u>Discussion and Next Steps Regarding the Kindergarten Schedule for 2011-2012</u>

The Board discussed and considered postponing the Kindergarten Task Force work as it relates to extended day Kindergarten for the 2011-2012 school year.

Interim Assistant Superintendent Debbie Wong explained that last year, when looking at changing schedules at the elementary level, the Board agreed to eliminate staggered reading in grades 1-3 in order to have dedicated intervention time called *Reading Academy*, and to reconvene a Kindergarten Task Force in 2010-11 to explore alternative schedule changes for 2011-12 implementation.

Since that time, there have been several things prompting whether it would be better to leave the current staggered schedule for 2011-2012, and postpone the Kindergarten Task Force for this year. Major areas included:

- Kindergarten Readiness Act of 2010: changes the Kindergarten entry age from 5 years old by December 2<sup>nd</sup> to 5 years old by September 1<sup>st</sup> in a three-year phase-in process
- K-5 teachers are implementing a brand new tiered intervention system along with new ELA assessments and new curriculum (Reading Academy
- Class size increases

A brief discussion ensued with Trustee Prola stating that she would rather not postpone, as the decision to extend the Kindergarten day plan this year with implementation in 2011-12 had already been agreed upon. In light of all of the changes, however, the Board agreed to postpone reconvening the task force this year, and that the Kindergarten Task Force would reconvene in the 2011-12 school year to begin planning and developing an alternative schedule and transitional Kindergarten for implementation in 2012-13.

On a motion made by Trustee Mack-Rose and seconded by Trustee James, the Board agreed postponing the Kindergarten Task Force work as it relates to extended day Kindergarten for the 2011-2012 school year, by a 6-1 vote. Trustee Prola voting no.

## REORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD

## Election of President of the Board of Education for 2010-2011

Trustee Prola nominated Morgan Mack-Rose for the office of President.

Ballots were disturbed, collected and votes were read. Trustee Mack-Rose was unanimously elected to the office of President of the Board of Education for the 2010-2011 school year.

## Election of Vice President of the Board of Education for 2010-2011

Trustee Mack-Rose nominated Trustee Prola for the office Vice President.

Ballots were distributed, collected and votes were read. Trustee Prola was unanimously elected to the office of Vice-President of the Board of Education for the 2010-2011 school year.

## Election of Clerk of the Board of Education for 2010-2011

Trustee James nominated Trustee Almonte for the office of Clerk.

Ballots were distributed, collected and votes were ready. Trustee Almonte was unanimously elected to the office of Clerk of the Board of Education for the 2010-2011 school year.

## ADDITIONAL SUGGESTIONS AND COMMENTS FROM BOARD MEMBERS

Following the election, Trustee Mack-Rose assumed her new role as President and asked for any additional suggestions and comments from Board members.

- Trustee Sullivan congratulated the new officers and Board trustees. She commended Trustee Katz-Lacabe for his service as President for that past two years.
- Trustee Almonte congratulated and welcomed the new Board members, and recognized outgoing Board President Trustee Katz-Lacabe for his service in that capacity.

Trustee Almonte reported that he attended the following workshops at the recent CSBA Conference: Board President workshop, Creating Safer Schools for LGBT Students, Promoting Student Nutrition Advisory Councils, Dashboard for School Governance, and Securing Sustainable Funding for After School Programs, commenting that overall he gained new knowledge and perspectives that will guide him through his term as a school board member.

• Trustee Katz-Lacabe welcomed the new Board trustees and congratulated the new officers, commenting that it was a pleasure serving as President and stating that he is very optimistic about the future of the Board and City continuing to work together for the betterment of the community.

Trustee Katz-Lacabe asked that the meeting be adjourned in memory of Emily Tao.

- Trustee Carey congratulated the new Board officers. He thanked the members for making this transition as a new trustee a smooth one and thanked the Superintendent and staff for providing him with pertinent information, adding that he was looking forward to serving on the Board.
- Trustee James thanked the Board, the Superintendent and District staff for being welcoming, and informative, thus bridging the gap between being an observer and a participant. He commented that Trustee Carey and he attended the New Board Member workshop at the CSBA conference.
- Trustee Prola commented that as the District's CSBA delegate, she attended the Alameda County/Contra Costa County breakfast meeting at the conference where she learned that there were a number of districts who received less than positive certifications and was pleased that San Leandro Unified was not one of them. She also attended a session where Pedro Noguera, a leading urban sociologist, spoke about students, particularly minority students, who are falling through the educational cracks. She hoped that in the upcoming months the Board would embark on some serious discussions about what we can do to benefit our students (particularly at the high school level), who are experiencing similar issues.

Trustee Prola offered a suggestion that when the Board meeting agendas are particularly full, presentations be limited to one per meeting.

• Trustee Mack-Rose commended Trustee Katz-Lacabe on his service as Board President and welcomed the new Board Trustees. She thanked everyone for their confidence and support in electing her as President, adding that as Board President, it will be her goal to facilitate meetings that are efficient, productive and respectful.

She commented that she will be working with the Superintendent to develop a comprehensive Board training plan for the year, and that in January she is planning on agendizing a review of the Board protocols.

Trustee Mack-Rose reported that all the committee requests have been turned in, and she will be announcing the assignments at the Special meeting on December 14. In the meantime, at her request, Trustee

Sullivan volunteered, to attend the Finance committee meeting tomorrow, December 8, at 5 p.m.

At 9:17 p.m., the Board recessed into closed session.

## ANNOUNCEMENT

## **Future Board of Education Meetings**

Special Meeting – December 14, 2010 - 1st Interim

Regular Meeting – January 11, 2011

Tentative Work Session - January 18, 2011

Regular Meeting – January 25, 2011

Regular Meeting - February 8, 2011

Tentative Work Session - February 15, 2011

Regular Meeting - March 1, 2011

Tentative Work Session - March 8, 2011

Regular Meeting – March 15, 2011

Regular Meeting – April 5, 2011

Regular Meeting - April 19, 2011

Regular Meeting - May 3, 2011

Tentative Work Session - May 10, 2011

Regular Meeting - May 17, 2011

Regular Meeting – June 7, 2011

Regular Meeting – June 21, 2011

Special Meeting – June 28, 2011 – Adoption Budget

## **ADJOURNMENT**

At 9:55 p.m., the Board returned to open session, where no reportable action was taken.

On a motion made by Trustee Katz-Lacabe and seconded by Trustee Prola, the Board adjourned the meeting at 9:55 p.m., in memory of John Muir Middle School 8<sup>th</sup> grader Emily Teo who succumbed to cancer in October 2010.

Respectfully submitted,

Hermy Almonte, Clerk

Board Approved: 1/11/11 12/7/10 - PAGE 16